
By a majority vote, a public body may amend its agenda to add items. The additional items shall be for informational purposes only 
and may not be voted on except when necessary to address an unexpected occurrence requiring immediate action or to refer the 
matter to an appropriate committee pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws §42-46-6(b). 

Copies of Meeting Minutes may be obtained pursuant to RIPTA’s public records policy, which is available at 
https://www.ripta.com/public-records-request/ of hearing can be provided by calling 784-9500 x1171 at least 48 hours in advance. 
The location is accessible to the handicapped. 

 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
Wednesday, December 17, 2025 

2:30 p.m. 
269 Melrose Street, Providence 

Transportation Board Room 
 

RIPTA Board of Directors - December 17, 2025 
                                                              

 

                                                                 AGENDA 

 
1. Board Discussion/ 

Potential Vote 
Board Resolution – Employee Commendation   

2. Board Approval To consider for approval the Draft Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
Meeting of October 23, 2025. 

3. Public Comment / 
Board Discussion 

Limited to 3 minutes per person. 

4. Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote  

CEO Report  
 

• CEO Update  

• Key Intiatives 

• Employee Spotlight 

• Ridership 

• On Time Performance 

• Lost Service 

• Safety Data 

• 2024 Rider Survey 

• January Service Changes 
 

 
5.  Board Discussion / 

Potential Vote 
Request for Approval – RIPTA Board of Directors Meeting Schedule 2026 

https://www.ripta.com/public-records-request/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTg2NjQ4NWQtMGMyYS00NTdmLTlkYTQtOThlODZlZjdmNjdh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%22443ce251-0278-4dfa-96ac-922ce313e07c%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%222fe838c4-c73c-4726-9c53-2d627652b0d9%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a


By a majority vote, a public body may amend its agenda to add items. The additional items shall be for informational purposes only 
and may not be voted on except when necessary to address an unexpected occurrence requiring immediate action or to refer the 
matter to an appropriate committee pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws §42-46-6(b). 

Copies of Meeting Minutes may be obtained pursuant to RIPTA’s public records policy, which is available at 
https://www.ripta.com/public-records-request/ of hearing can be provided by calling 784-9500 x1171 at least 48 hours in advance. 
The location is accessible to the handicapped. 

 

 

 
6. 

 
Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote 

 
Request for Approval – Budget Submission  

7. Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote  

Request for Approval – Transit Center  
 

8. Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote 

Request for Approval – Giro Three Year Maintenance Contract Extension  

9. Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote 

Request for Approval – Reveal Paratransit Software Contract Extension 

10. Board Discussion/ 
Potential Vote  

Board Questions and Answers 

11. Executive Session Executive Session to consider, discuss and act upon such matters as may be 
closed to the public pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws §42-46-5(a)(2) Sessions 
pertaining to collective bargaining or litigation, or work sessions pertaining 
to collective bargaining or litigation. 

12. Adjournment  

 

 
This Agenda was posted on December 15, 2025.  

https://www.ripta.com/public-records-request/


 

 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 23, 2025 

1:30 p.m. 
269 Melrose Street, Providence 

Transportation Board Room 
 

Members Present:    Director Peter Alviti, Board Chair; James Lombardi, Board Vice Chair;        
                                             James Leach, Board Treasurer; Patrick Crowley, Board Secretary;     
                                             Normand Benoit; Vincent Masino; and Bernard Georges. 
 
Absent Members: Marcy Reyes; and Heather Schey. 

Also Present:              Christopher Durand, CEO; Christopher Fragomeni, Esq.; Jacqueline    
Weidinger, Executive Assistant to CEO; members of RIPTA’s staff; and 
members of the public. 

 
Call to Order: Director Alviti calls the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m., indicating that   
                                            quorum was present.  
 
 
Agenda Item 1:           To consider for approval the Draft Meeting Minutes of the Board of  
                                             Directors Meeting of September 25, 2025. 
 
Mr. Crowley makes a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Lombardi seconds, and the 
motion passes with favorable votes by Director Alviti, Mr. Georges, Mr. Leach, Mr. Benoit, 
and Mr. Masino.  
 
 
Agenda Item 2:           To consider for approval the Draft Executive Meeting Minutes of the    
                                             Board of Directors Meeting of September 25, 2025. 
 
Mr. Crowley makes a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Masino seconds requesting the 
minutes be sealed, and the motion passes with favorable votes by Director Alviti, Mr. 
Georges, Mr. Leach, Mr. Benoit, and Mr. Lombardi.  
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 3: Public Comment 
 
1. Daria Phoebe Brashear 

• RIPTA run cuts are worse, the buses are more crowded.  Some buses show up             
                          late or not at all.    
                      • Suggests a more aggressive dispatch.   
 
 2. Dylan Giles- Save RIPTA – Providence Street Coalition 
                      • Discussed and read some comments from the Rider Impact Survey Response    
                         that Save RIPTA and Providence Street Coalition implemented.  
 
3. Mike Hogan – Did not Speak. 
 
 
Agenda Item 4:                     CEO Report 
 
Christopher Durand, RIPTA’s CEO, provides an update regarding RIPTA’s Employee Spotlight 
on Nakeecha Roberts, Customer Service Representative; Ridership; On Time Performance; 
Lost Service; and the Summer Youth Pass Pilot Program.   
No vote is taken. 
 
Christopher Durand requests that Agenda Item 7, Financial Statements, be moved to the 
next item and the Board agreed. 
 
 
Agenda Item 7:              Financial Statements  
 
Erica Olobri, CPA, MPAc, Managing Director CBIZ and Benjamin Wilkinson, Senior Manager, 
CBIZ present the draft Financial Statements to the board.    
 
Mr. Benoit makes a motion to accept the Financial Statement with the suggested edits 
made. Mr. Crowley seconds the motion and the motion passes with favorable votes by 
Director Alviti, Mr. Lombardi, Mr. Masino, Mr. Georges and Mr. Leach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 5: 2024 Rider Survey Presentation  
Sarah Ingle; Deputy Chief of Planning and Ella Ackerman; Long Range Transit Planner 
presents to the Board.   
 
The RIPTA Board of Directors discusses the importance of this Survey and how it can 
benefit in the future. 
No vote is taken.  
 
 
Agenda Item 6:              Public Transit Authority Safety Plan 
 
Joseph Philbin, Director of Street Supervision and Security Specialist; and Kenneth 
Vinacco; Director of Training and Security Specialist present to the board.   
 
Mr. Crowley makes a motion to approve the Public Transit Authority Safety Plan.  Mr. Masino 
seconds, and the motion passes with favorable votes by Director Alviti, Mr. Georges, Mr. 
Leach, Mr. Benoit, and Mr. Lombardi.  
 
 
Agenda Item 8:              Van Wrapping Contract  
 
John Chadwick, Chief Administrative Officer makes the request.  
 
Mr. Crowley makes a motion to approve. Mr. Masino seconds the motion and the motion 
passes with favorable votes by Director Alviti, Mr. Lombardi, Mr. Benoit, Mr. Georges and Mr. 
Leach.  
 
 
Agenda Item 9:              Board Questions and Answers  
 
The Board of Directors inquires about adding a lobbyist to RIPTA’s team; and would like Mr. 
Durand to provide a strategy at next month’s Board of Director’s meeting. 
No vote is taken.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 10: Adjournment – 2:41 p.m. 
 
Mr. Lombardi makes a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Benoit seconds, and the motion passes  
with favorable votes by Director Alviti, Mr. Georges, Mr. Crowley, Mr. Leach and Mr. Masino. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
_______________________________ 
Patrick Crowley, Secretary 



DECEMBER 2025 I  MONTHLY FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REPORT  I   BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING



CEO UPDATE

Drive Less RI Challenge 
In October, RIPTA launched a year-long initiative aimed at increasing bus ridership and reducing single-occupancy car trips across the state. Powered by the new Drive Less RI app, 
the challenge encourages Rhode Islanders to choose sustainable travel options—walking, biking, carpooling, vanpooling, or taking transit—and earn rewards for every trip they log.
Funded by the RI Executive Climate Change Coordinating Council, the program automatically enters participants into drawings for prizes, from local retail gift cards to larger 
quarterly giveaways designed to keep riders motivated throughout the year.

RIPTA Launches Multifamily Residential Pilot Program to Increase Ridership
Funded by the RI Executive Climate Change Coordinating Council, RIPTA launched a new pilot program to provide transportation benefits to tenants in multifamily housing 
communities. The initiative encourages sustainable travel choices and reduces dependence on personal vehicles, particularly in areas already well-served by transit. Through this 
pilot, property owners and managers can request free monthly transit passes for their residents, offering them the gift of free transportation throughout December 2025 and 
January 2026.

Buy Nothing Day Coat Drive
RIPTA embraced the spirit of giving this holiday season by collecting new and gently worn coats for the Buy Nothing Coat Exchange, held on the State House lawn. 
Thanks to the generosity of our team, RIPTA collected over 150 coats and warm items to support this vital cause. 

RI Delegation Announces $25M for New Hybrid Buses
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) is awarding Rhode Island federal funding through the Low or No Emission Grant Program to support RIPTA’s transition to 
low- or  zero-emission buses.

Food Pantries Near You
RIPTA launched a new webpage to help connect riders with essential community resources. Visit RIPTA.com/Food to find local food pantries across Rhode Island 
and the bus routes that serve them.

2025 Community Site Visits for Reduced Fare Bus 
Pass Program for Seniors and People with Disabilities
Every month, RIPTA’s Customer Service staff will travel 

to communities throughout the state to process Photo 

ID bus passes for qualified seniors and individuals with 

disabilities with valid documentation. These statewide 

Photo ID Community Site Visits allow residents in both 

rural and urban areas to access transit information and 

apply for the Reduced Fare Bus Pass Program without 

having to travel to RIPTA offices in Providence.

In October and November, RIPTA staff traveled to 
the Narragansett Senior Center, East Providence 
Senior Center, Leon Mathieu Senior Center in 
Pawtucket, Edward King House in Newport, Fox Point 
Manor in Providence, processing a total of 44 bus 
passes.



Workforce Development
Resumed hiring van operators, utility workers and mechanics

Service Improvements

Next schedule change takes effect January 17, 2026

Amenity Improvements
Shelters being installed along Pawtucket Transit Emphasis Corridor

Configuration of new real-time signs in Kennedy Plaza nearly complete

Performance Data and Benchmarking

Data workgroup will present at upcoming board meeting

KEY INITIATIVES



Xiomara Pacheco has been driving for RIPTA for 25 years and from the moment she 
started, she knew it was the right path. After earning her CDL and briefly working as a 
truck driver, she realized that long-haul work wouldn’t allow her to be home for her 
kids. As a single mom, she needed something local, stable, and meaningful. That’s 

when she applied to RIPTA. “In my opinion,” she says, “it’s the best thing I ever did.”

A proud early riser who’s usually pulling out of the garage by 4:40am, Xiomara brings 
discipline, warmth, and grit to every shift. “I’m the kind of person who loves to follow 
the rules,” she says. “At home, at work—everywhere.” That sense of structure helped 

her navigate the early years of her career while raising two young children. 
“It wasn’t easy, but I always focused on doing the job well 

and showing my kids how to work hard.”

Through blizzards, power outages, and long days behind the wheel, Xiomara has 
remained steady and reliable. She credits her success to loving what she does and 

working with a “beautiful team” of dispatchers, supervisors, and fellow operators. “If 
there’s ever a situation I can’t control, I know I have people who’ve got my back.”

Xiomara is friendly but focused and has earned the respect of riders who appreciate 
her no-nonsense style and even notice when she’s not behind the wheel. “Some say 

they miss me when I’m off," she laughs, "I don’t know why!”

Today, she splits her time between Rhode Island where she and her son live, and 
Florida where her daughter and new grandbaby live. But no matter where she is, 

Xiomara remains a proud RIPTA operator with a deep connection to her role. 
“I love my job,” she says simply. “This was the right path for me.”

EMPLOYEE 
SPOTLIGHT

Xiomara Pacheco 

Fixed-Route Operator



MONTHLY RIDERSHIP

MONTHLY RIDERSHIP
October 2025 Systemwide Ridership

RIDERSHIP DECREASED 7.2% IN OCTOBER 2025 FROM OCTOBER 2024

Fixed-Route ridership counts come from the Automatic Passenger Counts (APCs) from UTA.
Flex and RIde Paratransit ridership counts come from Reveal tablets for RIde, and 3rd party reports for Taxi trips, Flex On Demand ridership (included with Flex) comes from Spare

Systemwide Fixed-Route Flex RIde Paratransit



2025 2024 2023 2022

OCTOBER
SEPTEMBER
AUGUST
JULY
JUNE
MAY
APRIL
MARCH
FEBRUARY
JANUARY

73.2%
73.9%
77.2%
78.1%
76.7%
77.5%
78.4%
78.9%
79.6%
79.1%

73.7%
72.7%
76.7%
78.0%
74.9%
73.4%
76.5%
78.3%
78.3%
77.3%

77.3%
77.0%
79.3%
79.5%
79.1%
78.6%
81.3%
82.4%
82.2%
82.4%

78.3%
78.1%
81.3%
81.0%
80.2%
81.1%
81.7%
82.2%
81.3%
82.2%

DECEMBER 76.4% 76.9% 80.2%

NOVEMBER 74.0% 77.9% 79.2%
On Time Performance
On Time Performance (OTP) is based on Departure Time.
On Time is between 1 minute early and 5 minutes late. 

ABBG AVERAGE: 79%

ON TIME PERFORMANCE (OTP): FIXED-ROUTE

OTP DECREASED BY 0.5% IN OCTOBER 2025 FROM OCTOBER 2024

ON TIME PERFORMANCE



LOST TRIPS BY MONTH



SECURITY DASHBOARD

The NTD criteria for S&S-40 (Major Event) 

reporting include any safety or security event 

that meets the definition of a major event 

AND at least one of the following reporting 

thresholds: a confirmed fatality, an injury 

requiring transport from the scene, estimated 

property damage of at least $25,000., an 

evacuation for life safety reasons, or a collision 

requiring a vehicle to be towed away.

The NTD S&S-50 (Non-Major Monthly 

Summary Report) requires transit agencies to 

report safety and security events that do not 

meet the major event threshold. This includes 

a monthly summary of non-major incidents 

like slips, falls, and non-major fires, as well as 

injuries that occurred within the reporting 

month.



2024 RIDER SURVEY: PEER AGENCY COMPARISON

RIPTA 2024 Rider Survey – Peer Agency Results Comparison 
Peers were selected for similar system sizes or regional proximity, and include Massachusetts Bay Area Transportation Authority, CT Transit – New Haven, 
Pittsburg Regional Transit, Regional Transit Service (Rochester, NY), IndyGo (Indianapolis, IN), Hampton Roads Transit (Virginia), and Spokane Transit 
(Washington).

• Compared to most peers, RIPTA 
has a relatively low proportion 
of trips paid for with cash

• RIPTA’s ridership has similar trip 
purpose trends compared to 
that of peer agencies



2024 RIDER SURVEY: PEER AGENCY COMPARISON

RIPTA 2024 Rider Survey – Peer Agency Results Comparison 
Peers were selected for similar system sizes or regional proximity, and include Massachusetts Bay Area Transportation Authority, CT Transit – New Haven, 
Pittsburg Regional Transit, Regional Transit Service (Rochester, NY), IndyGo (Indianapolis, IN), Hampton Roads Transit (Virginia), and Spokane Transit 
(Washington).

The income distribution across RIPTA's 
ridership is relatively consistent with that of 
other agencies, where a high proportion of 
riders tend to be in the lowest income 
category and there is a significant 
proportion of middle-income riders.

Please note that the defined income 
brackets varied by agency survey and some, 
such as Hampton Roads, had $75,000 per 
year as the highest category option.



JANUARY 2026 |  SERVICE CHANGES

ROUTE
SERVICE 

DAY SERVICE CHANGE DETAILS

ROUTE 21 (Reservoir/Garden City/CCRI)
Weekday Trip times shifted 14 minutes to align with State Office PM shifts

Post-reduction schedule no longer aligned with shift end times of those along Howard Ave, a historically high 
ridership corridor for this route. This span shift was made to realign this route with work schedules.

ROUTE 22 (Pontiac Ave) Weekday
Frequency reduced from every :55 to every :60 minutes to improve driver      

recovery.
Reduced schedule was too tight for number of buses operating on the line. All layover was lost to traffic delays, 
leading to the operators falling further behind schedule with no chance for out of seat relief. 

ROUTE 24L (Newport/Fall River/Providence) Weekday Trip times shifted to address lack of operator recovery
Trips into Providence are regularly delayed by Washington Bridge traffic, causing the drivers to arrive with no 
layover time. This leads to no possible relief for operators, and trips to Newport departing after their scheduled 
times.

ROUTE 31 (Cranston St) Weekday AM/PM peak frequency increased to address lack of operator recovery
Post-reduction schedules on these heavily utilized routes left operators in the seat with no relief for hours on 
end. This, combined with the lack of layover, lead to delayed trip departures and a schedule that slipped 
throughout the AM/PM peak.

ROUTE 56 (Chalkstone Ave)
Weekday AM/PM peak frequency increased to address lack of operator recovery

ROUTE 50 (Douglas Ave/Bryant)
Weekday Run times recalibrated for better on-time performance

Trips continually ran late as reported by Bryant students, faculty, and operators. The cycle time was several 
minutes short in each direction. A newly calculated run time, implemented within the 2026 Winter schedule, 
will allow for better on-time performance and recovery time for operators.

ROUTE 66 (URI/Providence)
Weekday

Morning trip shifted to connect with Route 64 at Kingston Station
A minor adjustment was made to ensure riders heading south in the AM have a feasible connection to URI 
Bay Campus. 

Weekend Morning trip(s) shifted for more feasible connections to MBTA to Boston
Current schedule is too tight, or a near miss with the departing train. A slight trip shift will create a more 
feasible connection for riders. 

ROUTE 69 (Narragansett/Galilee)
Saturday Limited service restored from morning to midday (9:15a - 4:12p)

Numerous complaints detailing people's feelings of isolation, difficulty in running weekend errands, and 
being unable to explore the southern reaches of the state were received.

ROUTE 78 (Beverage Hill/E.Prov)
Saturday Improved recovery time at Pawtucket-Center Falls Transit Center

Relief opportunities of just 3 to 6 minutes at Transit Center were too little for the time spent in the seat and 
were often totally consumed by traffic delays. A newly calculated run time, implemented within the 2026 
Winter schedule, will allow for better on-time performance and recovery time for operators.

ROUTE Qx (Quonset Express)
Weekday Trips added to align with Job Lot shift times

Weekday trips added to align with Job Lot shift times. The performance of these new trips will be assessed 
throughout the choose-up period.

PARK & RIDE ROUTES (12x, 59x, 61x, 95x, )
Weekday Trip times moved in accordance with rider feedback

Based on overwhelming feedback from those who utilize these routes, we have shifted the trips to better 
accommodate their work schedules.



1 
 

 

 
 

To:  RIPTA Board of Directors  

From:   Christopher Durand, CEO 

Date: November 24, 2025 

RE:  RIPTA 2024 Rider Survey – Peer Agencies Results Comparative Analysis  
 

 
At the October 2025 RIPTA Board of Directors meeting, staff presented key findings from 

RIPTA’s 2024 Rider Survey. This memo is a follow-up assembled by staff to address the Board’s 

request to compare these survey results to those of peer agencies.  

The peer agencies included in this analysis were selected for their similarities with RIPTA 

regarding system size, ridership, mode, and regional proximity. Selected peer agencies, their 

location, and key NTD statistics that depict system size, mode, and service area are shown in 

the table below. The analysis that follows includes comparison across agencies of respondents’ 

trip purposes, transfers, cash payment, transit dependency, income, race & ethnicity, and age. 

Not every peer agency’s report had data for each of these categories, so each category in this 

analysis compares RIPTA data only to the peers that had comparable statistics.  

Agency Location 
NTD Annual 

Unlinked 
Trips (2024) 

Annual Vehicle 
Revenue Miles 

Service 
area Sq. 

Miles 
Modes 

RIPTA Rhode Island 13,097,025 12,644,120 1,143 
Bus, Vanpool, Demand 
Response 

Spokane Transit Spokane, WA 10,661,102 10,727,633 248 
Bus, Demand Response, 
Vanpool 

Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation 
Authority (MBTA) 

Boston, 
Worchester, 
Providence 251,724,882 48,419,976 664 

Bus, Demand Response, 
BRT, Light Rail, Heavy Rail, 
Commuter Rail, Ferry 

IndyGo Indianapolis, IN 7,133,338 9,711,062 396 Bus, Demand Response, BRT 

Pittsburg Regional 
Transit (PRT) Pittsburgh, PA 37,876,514 1,622,331 775 

Bus, Demand Response, 
Light Rail 

Rochester (RTS) 

Rochester and 
Monroe 
County, NY 10,253,425 7,465,297 298 Bus, Demand Response 

CT Transit (New 
Haven) 

New Haven, 
Bridgeport, 
Waterbury, CT  5,988,941 4,457,762 456 Bus 

Hampton Roads 
Virginia Beach, 
Norfolk VA 8,616,946 349,860 438 

Bus, Vanpool, Demand 
Response, Light Rail, Ferry 



2 
 

 

 

The table below shows the year and method of the surveys used in this analysis. 

Agency Survey Year Survey Method 

RIPTA 2024 On-board 

Spokane Transit 2021 Online (Last trip recall) 

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority 
(MBTA) 

2024 On-board or In-station 

IndyGo 2022 On-board 

Pittsburg Regional Transit (PRT) 2015 Online (General behavior past year) 

Rochester (RTS) 2024 Mixed Method (On-board & Online) 

CT Transit (New Haven) 2018 On-board 

Hampton Roads 2023 On-board 

 

Trip Purpose and Trip Ends 

RIPTA’s Trip End data shared at the October 2025 Board Meeting included the chart below that shows 

the percentage of trips that had the origin or destination of the trip located at the following places: 

home, workplace, shopping, school/college, recreational/social, medical, child care, or other.  

 

To compare this data to that of peer agencies, RIPTA’s trip end data was normalized to 100% and peer 

data was consolidated into common categories. Note that the Hampton Roads Transit data only includes 

weekday records.  

 



3 
 

Transfers 

54.3% of RIPTA trips require at least one transfer, which is a similar proportion to that of RTS , where 

53% of trips require a transfer. The proportion of RITPA trips that require a transfer is relatively high 

compared to that of CT Transit New Haven, IndyGo, and Hampton Roads as 25% of CT Transit New 

Haven trips, 12% of IndyGo trips, and 40% of Hampton Roads Transit trips require at least one transfer. 

RIPTA’s relatively high proportion of transfer trips may be due to our agency’s large statewide service 

area.  

 

 

 

Cash Fare Payment 

According to RIPTA’s survey, 21% of RIPTA trips are paid for with cash. Four peer agencies whose rider 

survey reports included cash payment data have a higher proportion of trips paid for with cash, and only 

one of such agencies had a lower proportion than RIPTA’s. 



4 
 

Transit Dependency  

To evaluate passengers’ transit dependency, RIPTA’s survey asked riders if they have a valid driver’s 

license and a household vehicle that they could have used to make their trip. Those data points were 

cross-tabulated and displayed in the chart below. Since peer agencies did not all have cross-tabulated 

data, the comparative charts show license and vehicle data separately.  

 

 

 



5 
 

Passenger Income 

The bar chart below showing RIPTA’s passenger income data was shared at the October 2025 Board 

Meeting and displays the percentage of trips made by riders across eight annual income categories. This 

data uses the default “all trips” weight, but for this charts that follow, RIPTA’s distinct rider weight was 

used to make the metrics comparable (i.e. 29.9% of RIPTA trips are made by riders whose income is less 

than $10,000 per year versus 28.2% of RIPTA riders earn less than $10,000 per year). 

 

A comparison of peer agency passenger income data is displayed area charts below that accommodate 

for different income ranges and categories that were used in peer agency surveys (for example, some 

agencies’ highest income option was $75K or more rather than $100K or more). This comparison shows 

the income distribution across RIPTA’s ridership is relatively consistent with that of other agencies, 

where a high proportion of passengers tend to be in the lowest income category and there is a 

significant proportion of middle-income passengers.  

 

 

29.9

14.5

12.7

11.1

12.5

9.4

4.2

5.7

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0

Below $10,000

$10,000 to $14,999

$15,000 to $24,999

$25,000 to $34,999

$35,000 to $49,999

$50,000 to $74,999

$75,000 to $99,999

$100,000 or more

Passenger Income



6 
 

 

Passenger Race & Ethnicity  

The pie chart below showing RIPTA’s passenger race and ethnicity data was shared at the October 2025 

Board Meeting and displays the percentage of trips made by riders across six race and ethnicity 

categories.  

 

 



7 
 

The RIPTA data shown in the comparative chart below is different from the pie chart data because it 

shows percent of distinct passengers in each category rather than percent of trips. Comparing this data 

across peer agencies shows that RIPTA’s ridership includes a meaningful proportion of Hispanic 

passengers and overall passenger race and ethnicity varies significantly among agencies, which is 

expected since the demographic makeup of each agency’s service area is unique.  

 

Passenger Age 

The Rider Survey data presented at the October 2025 Board Meeting was reconfigured into a bar chart 

for ease of comparison with that of peer agencies since age groups were defined differently across 

different agency surveys. Comparative bar charts are shown on the following page.  

Age distribution among RIPTA passengers is relatively similar to that of passengers of CT Transit New 

Haven, Spokane Transit and Hampton Roads. Compared to RIPTA, RTS, MBTA, and PRT have a higher 

proportion of younger adult riders ages 25-34 or 25-40. 

 

 



8 
 

 

 



  

Board of Directors Meeting Schedule 

To receive information on upcoming Authority Board meetings, agendas, and to read meeting 

minutes, please go to the Secretary of State Website http://sos.ri.gov or to www.ripta.com.  

 

2026 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule 

Thursday, January 22, 2026 

Thursday, February 26, 2026 

Thursday, March 26, 2026 

Thursday April 23, 2026 

Thursday, May 28, 2026 

Thursday, June 25, 2026 

Thursday, July 23, 2026 

Thursday, August 27, 2026 

Thursday, September 24, 2026 

Thursday, October 22, 2026 

Thursday, November 19, 2026 

Thursday, December 17, 2026 

 

All meetings are held at 1:30 pm at RIPTA’s Transportation Conference Room located at 269 

Melrose Street, Providence, RI, unless otherwise noted. 

Please call (401) 784-9500 ext. 1171 with any questions.  Thank you. 

 

http://sos.ri.gov/
http://www.ripta.com/
http://www.ripta.com/










































































































































































































RIPTA Budget Update

December 2025



FY 2026 Initial Budget Picture

• With the exhaustion of federal COVID relief funding, the 
Authority was facing a $32M deficit for FY 2026. 

• This deficit would have resulted in large scale service 
eliminations, layoffs and curtailed ADA paratransit service 
across the state.

• 25% of fixed-route service and over 250 jobs were at risk.



Expenses have grown 
at an annual rate of 
1.16% over the 
period FY19 - FY24, 
significantly slower 
than inflation over 
the period, both 
nationally and in 
the transit industry.

1.16%



FY 2026 State Investment  
and Program Expansion

$14.4M in new funding
• Gas Tax Increase ($0.02/gallon): $8.7M for FY 2026
• Highway Maintenance Account Increase: $5.7M 
 - This is an annual allocation

Statewide RIde Anywhere paratransit program made permanent
• Increased the ADA/paratransit coverage area from ¾ of a mile 

from a fixed-route zone to statewide coverage/no limit. 



Restructuring & Savings

Reduced FTE count from 896 to 845
• Fixed-route service reductions
• Outsourced ADA trips reduced
• Administrative Personnel reduced

One-time reductions
• Legal cost savings
• Improved pension performance
• Fuel lock savings 

Cost Reductions
Structural
• Fare Increase FY 2027 ($1.2M)
• Federal Reimbursements ($2.1M)
• Advertising Increase ($0.5M)
• CMAQ Operating Support ($0.2M)

One-time revenues
• State Operating Advance ($3M)
• CMAQ Prior Year Carry ($2M)

Revenue Improvements



Revised Budget

What began as a deficit of over 
$30M has been balanced through a 
combination of efficiency measures, 
reductions to underperforming routes, 
and new state revenues. 

We continue to monitor route 
performance and customer 
feedback to determine how to 
make our system better.  

Improved usage of data analytics will 
help the Authority be more responsive 
to the needs of riders and to attract 
new riders to the system. 

Initial 2026 Budget
Revised 2026 

Budget
Revenues
Federal Subsidies $         42,890,561 $         55,360,963 
State Subsidies $         49,463,172 $         65,154,302 
Other Revenue $           8,759,764 $           7,818,042 
Passenger Fares $         11,348,922 $         11,544,630 
Third Party Fares $         12,447,275 $         10,744,639 
RIde Passenger Fares $           2,746,366 $           2,629,354 
Total Revenues $       127,656,060 $       153,251,929 

Expenses
Salaries & Fringe Benefits $       111,764,216 $       108,939,169 
Contract Services $         15,734,366 $         18,324,129 
Operating Expense $         27,402,477 $         21,346,806 
Utilities $           2,026,726 $           2,471,895 
Capital Match & Repayment $           2,178,761 $           2,169,931 
Total Expenses $       159,106,546 $       153,251,929 

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) $       (31,450,486) $                          (0)



Key Considerations for FY 2026

• Union negotiations with ATU Local 618 and 
LIUNA Local 808 

• Rising workers compensation costs 
• Rising healthcare costs 
• Increased RIde paratransit program demand, 

along with increasing share of trips occurring 
in expanded zone, have limited ability to 
reduce overflow to taxicab providers 

• Volatility in fuel prices, capital markets and 
associated pension contributions, and legal 
liability all continue to lead to budget 
uncertainty. 



FY 2027 Draft Budget

Preliminary budget for  FY 2027: 
• $21M increase in revenue
• $5M less in expenses 
• Deficit reduced by more than 

$26M from original projections
• While some costs increase, 

total expenses are still below 
original 2026 cost projections.

Initial 2027
Revised 2027 

(Working)
Revenues
Federal Subsidies $         42,890,561 $         46,249,171 
State Subsidies $         46,618,282 $         64,784,456 
Other Revenue $           7,894,543 $           7,891,557 
Passenger Fares $         26,683,528 $         26,186,220 
Total Revenues $       124,086,914 $       145,111,404 

Expenses
Salaries & Fringe Benefits $       116,284,254 $       115,741,203 
Contract Services $         16,111,991 $         14,103,779 
Operating Expense $         27,091,208 $         24,229,369 
Utilities $           2,128,062 $           2,595,489 
Capital Match & Repayment $           2,274,561 $           2,274,641 
Total Expenses $       163,890,076 $       158,944,482 

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) $       (39,803,162) $       (13,883,078)



Draft Budget Summary

Revenues
FY 2026 

Initial
FY 2026 
Revised

FY 2027 
Initial

FY 2027 
Revised

Federal Subsidies $42,890,561 $55,360,963 $42,890,561 $46,249,171 
State Subsidies $49,463,172 $65,154,302 $46,618,282 $64,784,456 
Other Revenue $8,759,764 $7,818,042 $7,894,542 $7,891,557 
Passenger Fares $11,348,922 $11,544,630 $11,519,156 $12,738,190 
Third Party Fares $12,447,275 $10,744,639 $12,411,311 $10,812,236 
RIde Passenger Fares $2,746,366 $2,629,354 $2,753,061 $2,635,794 
Total Revenues $127,656,060 $153,251,929 $124,086,913 $145,111,404 

Values

Expenses
FY 2026 

Initial
FY 2026 
Revised

FY 2027 
Initial

FY 2027 
Revised

Salaries & Fringe Benefits $111,764,216 $108,939,169 $116,284,254 $115,741,203 
Contract Services $15,734,366 $18,324,129 $16,111,991 $14,103,779 
Operating Expense $27,402,477 $21,346,806 $27,091,208 $24,229,369 
Utilities $2,026,726 $2,471,895 $2,128,062 $2,595,489 
Capital Match & Repayment $2,178,761 $2,169,931 $2,274,561 $2,274,641 
Total Expenses $159,106,546 $153,251,929 $163,890,076 $158,944,482 

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) ($31,450,486) ($0) ($39,803,163) ($13,833,078)



Looking Ahead

• Comprehensive fare study underway, with  
new fare structures targeted for Q3 2026.

• Developing a model to introduce functional 
assessments for the RIde paratransit 
program, ensuring the service continues to 
serve those who need the service most.

• Working with employers to identify 
transportation gaps and ways for RIPTA to 
build its ridership and revenues.

• Continued efforts to improve rider amenities, 
including a new bus hub in downtown 
Providence and enhancing shelters and 
signage across the state. 



 

 

 

 
To:  RIPTA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Christopher Durand, Chief Executive Officer  
              
Date: November 26, 2025 

  

Re:  Update on Proposed Providence Transit Center and Request for In-depth Site Investigation 

 

This memorandum shall serve as an update regarding the Providence Transit Center Joint Development 

Project and a request to the Board for authorization to engage with Next Wave Rhode Island Partners to 

perform an in-depth evaluation and structural feasibility of a site near the Providence Amtrak/MBTA 

Station. This site has been identified and vetted by our internal team and project partners and has 

received substantial statewide engagement.  

Activities To-Date 
From January 2024 through April 2024 Next Wave worked to identify and evaluate potential sites for the 
project using criteria and data developed in partnership with the RIPTA project team and their advisors. 
The team conducted initial technical due diligence on sites deemed most viable through the evaluation 
process and completed further study. The results of the evaluation process and technical findings have 
led us to the area near the Providence Train Station. 
 
Community Engagement 
In early 2024, RIPTA and the Next Wave Rhode Island Partners (“NWRIP”) consortium executed a 
comprehensive Preliminary Services Agreement (“PSA”) with an initial scope of work focused on site 
selection for the new transit center. Together, RIPTA and NWRIP identified seven sites for evaluation, all 
located in Downtown Providence within 3/4-mile of the current hub at Kennedy Plaza. These sites were 
chosen based on proximity to key activity centers; accessibility to local and regional transit networks; 
and, in certain cases, a history of interest as a potential hub site. Public outreach conducted during the 
first two tasks of the PSA found proximity to the Providence Train Station as a preference across an 
array of stakeholder groups. 
 
Key Findings 

• Strong Preference for Sites Near Providence Station 

Across nearly all engagement activities conducted during Task 2, sites closest to Providence 

Station received overwhelming support and were consistently ranked among the strongest 

options. 

• Identification of Francis Street 

Based on community preference and an in-depth analysis, RIPTA expanded review of all parcels 

around the train station. This process resulted in the identification of an additional promising 

site—Francis Street. (See map.)  



 

 

• Major Project Milestone Reached 

Completion of Task 2 marked a significant milestone. Well beyond any prior transit center 

initiative over the past decade, RIPTA has successfully identified an alternative hub location that 

will enable the agency to grow beyond its current footprint in and around Kennedy Plaza and 

provide riders with a safer, more convenient, and more welcoming passenger experience.  

Arial view of Francis Street parcel: 

 

Next Steps / Board Action Requested 
With Task 2 complete, RIPTA is prepared to engage with Next Wave to determine the capability of the 
site to support the potential structure of a Transit Center. Next Wave will perform this on-site structural 
analysis and provide a detailed report of their findings. Should there be any findings that would require 
additional site work or repairs, Next Wave will provide a separate engineering design proposal to address 
those issues. 

 
To support this project’s progression, I am requesting Board approval for authorization to allow Next 

Wave to conduct a structural analysis and perform any necessary additional design work related to 

the findings of that report, in an amount not to exceed $250,000. 

Christopher Durand 

Chief Executive Officer 



Version : 2020-07-25 

TO: 
PREPARED BY: 

 

DEPARTMENT: 

RIPTA Board of Directors is requested to award a three year extension to Giro for a support contract for the Hastus software 
package used by Planning and Transportation. The extension will run to August 30, 2028 at a total cost of $556,274 over the 3 year 
term to be paid in yearly installments. 

The Hastus software has been RIPTA's core scheduling software used by the Planning department. This request covers the updated 
version to be completed in February of 2026. The cost of this maintenance contract is $556,274. 

This contract is needed to maintain and upgrade this critical software for both the Planning and Transportation departments. The 
system is the backbone of RIPTA's scheduling and dispatching operations. Part of this contract extension will allow RIPTA to 
upgrade to the latest version of the software which offers enhancements for scheduling, dispatching and soon to be required 
electric bus management features. 

Federal funds are available to offset 80% of the purchase cost with RIPTA operating funds covering the remaining portion 

The alternative would be to conduct an RFP for a new fixed route scheduling and management software package, which would be a 
significant expense to the agency. 

RIPTA Board of Directors is requested to award a contract to Giro for a three year extension through August 2028 

APPROVALS (shaded Departments must approve all Staff Summaries). Projects between $5,000 and $10,000 must have 
Department Director/AGM. Projects between $10,000 and $100,000 must have CEO also. 

Projects greater than $100,000 must also have Board of Directors Approval 

Budget D 
Customer Service D 
Environmental/Safety D 
Finance D 
Flex/Paratransit D 
Human Resources D 
Inform. Services D 
Legal/Risk Mgmt D 

Maintenance/Facility D 
Marketing D 
Planning D 
Procurement D 
Security D 
Training D 
Transportation DChief Exec. Officer 

Information Technologies Gary Jarvis, Deputy Chief ofTechnology 

RHODE ISLAND PUBLIC TRANSIT AUTHORITY STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

 Board of Directors DATE: 09/30/2025 

11/20/2025 

11/19/2025 

11/19/2025 

11/21/2025 



Signature: Signature: 

Email: gjarvis@ripta.com Email: Ihanson@ripta.com 

Signature: Signature: 
Christopher Durand (Nov 21, 2025 08:50:30 EST) 

Email: nwatchous@ripta.com Email: cdurand@ripta.com 

mailto:gjarvis@ripta.com
mailto:Ihanson@ripta.com
mailto:nwatchous@ripta.com
mailto:cdurand@ripta.com


TO: 
PREPARED BY:  

DATE:     
DEPARTMENT: 

RHODE ISLAND PUBLIC TRANSIT AUTHORITY STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

TITLE :  

BACKGROUND 

JUSTIFICATION 



Maintenance/Facility 

Marketing 

Planning 

Procurement

SecuritySe

TrainingTr

Transportation  

Chief Exec. Officer 

Budge

Customer Service 

Environmental/Safety 

Flex/Paratransit  

Human Resources 

Inform. Services  

Legal/Risk Mgmt  

APPROVALS (shaded Departments must approve all Staff Summaries)  Projects between $5,000 and $10,000 must have
Department Director/AGM.  Projects between $10,000 and $ 0,000 must have CEO also.

Projects greater than $ 0,000 must also have Board of Directors Approval

Department Department Initial Initial Date Date 

FUNDING 

ALTERNATIVES 

RECOMMENDATION 

RHODE ISLAND PUBLIC TRANSIT AUTHORITY STAFF SUMMARY FORM 

TO:
PREPARED BY:  

DATE:     
DEPARTMENT: 




	1 Agenda - BOD 12.17.25
	2 Draft RIPTA BOD Meeting Minutes for 10 23 2025 rvr edits
	3 CEO Report 12_2025
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11

	3A BOD Presentation Follow-up Comparative Analysis
	4 Board Meeting Schedule 2026
	5 - Joint Letter
	Budget Submission - Reduced Size
	5B - December Budget Update
	Slide 0
	Slide 1: FY 2026 Initial Budget Picture
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: FY 2026 State Investment   and Program Expansion
	Slide 4: Restructuring & Savings
	Slide 5: Revised Budget
	Slide 6: Key Considerations for FY 2026
	Slide 7: FY 2027 Draft Budget
	Slide 8: Draft Budget Summary
	Slide 9: Looking Ahead

	6 Transit Center Board Memo 
	7 Giro
	8 STAFF SUMMARY-REVEAL



